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          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Good afternoon.

          3  This is a meeting of the Committee on Youth

          4  Services. I am City Councilman Ken Fisher, from

          5  Brooklyn. I am joined by Council Members Lopez,

          6  Espada, Clarke, Robinson and I think there are

          7  others in the building. I apologize for the delay,

          8  but we were having a briefing on the lead bill that

          9  is apparently being negotiated, so we will get right

         10  into the heart of it.

         11                 The Committee on Youth Services has

         12  jurisdiction over the youth portion of the

         13  Department of Employment's Summer Youth Employment

         14  Program, which is largely but not exclusively

         15  federally funded, and has provided some 30, 35,000

         16  summer jobs for young people between the ages of 14

         17  and 21 years each summer.

         18                 One aspect of the program that we

         19  will be looking at in the fall, together with the

         20  Committee on General Welfare, has to do with

         21  impending changes to the Job Training Partnership

         22  Act, or JTPA, which is the federal program that

         23  authorizes the Summer Youth Program. When the Work

         24  Force Investment Act, otherwise known as the federal

         25  welfare reform law, is fully implemented, the JTPA
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          2  program as it currently exists will be abolished and

          3  a new structure will be put into place.

          4                 There is a great deal of concern that

          5  because of the absence of state regulations covering

          6  this area and also the -- as a result of the absence

          7  of state regulations, a number of the structures

          8  that are called for by the Work Force Investment Act

          9  have not yet been created, that the social service

         10  agencies that are involved with providing these jobs

         11  and placing the young people won't be ready for the

         12  new statute when it goes into effect.

         13                 It was my original intention to try

         14  and address that problem in today's hearing, but at

         15  the request of the Chair of the Committee on General

         16  Welfare, we are going to defer that to the fall

         17  because they have been looking at the overall impact

         18  on the Department of Employment, as well as the

         19  welfare system in general. So, it is our current

         20  intention to hold maybe a two-part hearing in the

         21  fall where the Committee on General Welfare deals

         22  with the adult issues and then we pick it up

         23  together with them to do the youth issues.

         24                 Nonetheless, I say that by way of

         25  preface because some of the issues that may come up
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          2  today may reflect on that, not our intention to go

          3  into it in great detail, but it is a factor.

          4                 What we do want to focus in on

          5  however, is where we are in terms of this summer.

          6  One of the continuing complaints that members of the

          7  Council have had has been in the area of contract

          8  registration and placement and this was taken up by

          9  the Committee on Contracts in April, where they

         10  looked at the delays in the approval of human

         11  service contracts generally, including DYCD and

         12  SYEP, that is Summer Youth Employment Program

         13  contracts, and there would seem to be some level of

         14  confusion as between the Mayor's Office of

         15  Contracts, the Agency and the Comptroller's Office

         16  as to how many contracts were outstanding and what

         17  the delays were and what was causing them.

         18                 In the meantime, the current summer

         19  youth program begins in July, and it is not entirely

         20  clear at this point whether or not the agencies that

         21  are in the business of providing those jobs are

         22  ready, not whether they are ready, willing and able,

         23  but whether or not procedurally they are ready to

         24  move forward.

         25                 One of the observations that was made
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          2  by the City Comptroller in response to the Committee

          3  on Contracts hearing was that very often performance

          4  on these contracts begin before the contracts are

          5  registered, and the agencies are somewhat

          6  disadvantaged when they go and try and seek

          7  compensation for it and there is all sorts of

          8  paperwork, hurdles to have to be overcome which

          9  imposes a burden on them.

         10                 In addition to that. One of the

         11  questions that was raised with Commissioner Pagan in

         12  the past has to do with the performance indicators,

         13  as we have moved towards performance-based

         14  contracts, to make sure that the providers who are

         15  being paid to place these young people are doing

         16  what we want them to do, and there is some confusion

         17  as to how the indicators are going to work in the

         18  current contracts and whether or not they present an

         19  insurmountable barrier.

         20                 So, all of that by way of

         21  introduction, we had invited the Department of

         22  Employment to be our lead-off witness, I should

         23  announce that if anybody is here to testify in

         24  connection with this matter, please make sure that

         25  you see the Sergeant-At-Arms in the rear of the room
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          2  and fill out a witness slip, if you have not done so

          3  already. We have been joined by Council Member

          4  Perkins, and having said that, let me call on now

          5  the First Deputy Commissioner to testify and if you

          6  would introduce your team.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

          8  Yes, good afternoon. Seated to my right is Deidre

          9  Pilgrim. Diedre is the Executive Director of the

         10  SYEP Program, and to my left is Hector Flores,

         11  representing the Department's Budget and Fiscal

         12  Unit.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: If you could just

         14  state your name for the record, because we are

         15  taping the hearings.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         17  Okay, my name is Stan Diglio, I am Deputy

         18  Commissioner at the City Department of Employment. I

         19  am here on behalf of Commissioner Antonio Pagan, who

         20  is unable to be before this Committee today.

         21                 Commissioner Pagan extends his

         22  regrets for being unable to attend.

         23                 I appreciate the opportunity to

         24  appear before you today to discuss the 1999 Summer

         25  Youth Employment Program.
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          2                 I will now make a brief statement and

          3  would be pleased to answer any questions that the

          4  Committee would have afterwards.

          5                 The Department of Employment's

          6  mission is to provide New York City's employers with

          7  a qualified and skilled workforce by offering City

          8  residents a full range of job training and placement

          9  services.

         10                 The Department implements and

         11  oversees the system of occupational assessments,

         12  skills training, educational remediation, and job

         13  placement of the City's unemployed and

         14  under-employed residents by funding a network of

         15  contractors with primarily federal Job Training

         16  Partnership ACT funds.

         17                 One of our programs that Mayor

         18  Giuliani and the Department are highly proud of is

         19  our Summer Youth Employment Program.

         20                 New York City's SYEP is the largest

         21  in the nation. It provides youth ages 14 through 21

         22  with a valuable experience with developing work

         23  skills and good work habits that will serve them

         24  well as they move on to their chosen careers later

         25  in life.
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          2                 As the Department had previously

          3  testified, we had planned to serve 40,500 youth

          4  through SYEP this summer. However, we anticipate

          5  exceeding this goal.

          6                 To date, the Department has received

          7  close to 83,000 applicants for this year's program.

          8  Final numbers of the total amount of youth served

          9  through the 1999 SYEP will not be final until the

         10  fall of 1999.

         11                 Funding for this year's SYEP will be

         12  drawn from $47.252 million in federal Job Training

         13  Partnership ACT Title 2B funds.

         14                 This is an increase from last year's

         15  appropriation of $42.2 million.  To assist an

         16  expanding SYEP scope of service, the Department will

         17  utilize $7.4 million in City tax levy funds through

         18  the Job Opportunity for Youth Program, JOY. This

         19  amount reflects an increase from last year's $7.1

         20  million appropriation. Our service level through the

         21  JOY Program in 1998 was $8,812, and 35,912 through

         22  SYEP.

         23                 For last year's SYEP's, services were

         24  delivered through a network of 51 contractors

         25  throughout all five boroughs. This year the
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          2  Department will utilize 69 contractors. In an effort

          3  to maximize accountability and performance from our

          4  contractors, the Department has implemented a

          5  performance-based contract system.

          6                 Under this system contractors will be

          7  paid based on their ability to meet milestones as

          8  established in their contract with the Department in

          9  the following areas: enrollment, placement,

         10  retention, and close-out.

         11                 As an extension of SYEP, the

         12  Department will be renewing the School Year Program

         13  for Fiscal Year 2000. In program year 1999, the

         14  Department served 1,718 young people with

         15  internships, counseling and job readiness training

         16  during the school year.

         17                 Funding for this program will be

         18  drawn from $1.029 million in City tax levy dollars.

         19  Again, I would like to thank the members of this

         20  Committee and look forward to your support as we

         21  work to have this summer's youth employment program

         22  our most successful ever.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Commissioner, 69

         24  contractors, that means 69 contracts?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:
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          2  Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER:  How many of

          4  those contracts are registered?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: As

          6  we speak there are 47 registered contracts. An

          7  additional ten have just come out of MOC and will be

          8  forwarded to the Comptroller's Office. There are

          9  another 11 that are still with DOI and DLS. When we

         10  receive them back from those units they will be

         11  forwarded to MOC.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I am sorry, DOI,

         13  and what was the other acronym?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         15  DLS.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: DLS.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         18  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: What does that

         20  stand for?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         22  Labor Services.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay.

         24                 And what percentage of the slots, are

         25  there a certain number of slots associated with each
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          2  contract?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

          4  Yes, it varies.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: So, what

          6  percentage of the slots are registered at this

          7  point?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

          9  Approximately 80 percent.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And the ten

         11  contracts that came out of MOC, came out of -- I

         12  mean, just explain for the record what coming out of

         13  MOC means?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: It

         15  means that they have reviewed the contracts and the

         16  sponsoring organizations and they have passed on

         17  them, they have not come up with any problems, and

         18  so they are ready to go to the Comptroller's Office.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And have they in

         20  fact been transmitted to the Comptroller's Office?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         22  They will be by, I believe, tomorrow.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FISHER: And how long

         24  does the Comptroller have to review those contracts?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:
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          2  Technically 30 days, the turn-around has been faster

          3  than that.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FISHER: So,

          5  theoretically the Comptroller could, those contracts

          6  could not be processed by the starting date of the

          7  program; is that correct?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

          9  That's possible.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER:  What assurance

         11  do we have that this will be done by July, the 6th

         12  is the starting date, I believe?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         14  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Do we have any

         16  assurance that those -- let's start with those ten

         17  contracts, will in fact be processed by July the

         18  6th?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         20  Based on experience there should be no problem with

         21  those ten being ready by the 6th.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And then what

         23  about the other 11?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: We

         25  don't know what the issues are with DOI and DLS. I
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          2  can't respond to that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Now,

          4  approximately what percentage of the program are

          5  represented by those 11 contracts?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: I

          7  would say about three percent, five percent, very

          8  small numbers.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay.

         10                 Now, I want to ask you about the

         11  milestones.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         13  Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We have a copy of

         15  what I believe to be a portion of the RFP, and we

         16  can make a copy available to you, if you like.

         17                 It says that payment number one

         18  enrollment, a payment of 40 percent of the total

         19  contracted rate will be paid upon enrollment.

         20                 First of all, what does enrollment

         21  mean in this context?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         23  That means that youth have been recruited, their

         24  eligibility and background, family background has

         25  been reviewed, they meet eligibility standards, and
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          2  that means they are qualified to participate in the

          3  SYEP.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And does a

          5  provider have to have 100 percent of their allotment

          6  enrolled in order to receive this first payment?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: A

          8  provider has to have 100 percent of their allotment

          9  enrolled.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And therefore,

         11  are there any costs associated on the provider's

         12  part in reaching this goal? Don't they have to have

         13  staff and personnel and so forth to do that?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         15  Historically, this is not the first year for this.

         16  My understanding is historically with DOE, and

         17  Deidre can affirm this, that providers have been

         18  asked to contribute this effort as an in-kind

         19  effort, the enrollment.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: In fact, you have

         21  to enroll more than 100 percent to get to the 100

         22  percent.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         24  Yes. Well, we encourage providers to go over 100

         25  percent enrollment, and to have a pool of candidates
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          2  on a waiting list so-to-speak. Then that is to

          3  provide for any youth dropping out of the program

          4  during the course of the summer, it allows the

          5  sponsor to backfill quickly.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Have any of the

          7  sponsors, provider organizations indicated that it

          8  is a burden on them to fund the cost of the

          9  enrollment?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         11  There always are a handful, but it has been very

         12  few, to the best of my knowledge.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And do all of the

         14  providers, take last year, for example, was this

         15  condition, 40 percent condition, in the contract

         16  last year?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: No,

         18  last year was a line item budget, not a performance

         19  based. However, let me point out that in this

         20  configuration of performance based, when enrollment

         21  is achieved, 40 percent of the year's budget is

         22  going to be forwarded to the contractor and that is

         23  a very large amount of money much sooner in the

         24  contract term than has ever been the case

         25  historically. Much sooner. It is a considerable
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          2  amount of money, 40 percent.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We have had some

          4  providers tell us that, since so many contracts are

          5  now moving to performance-based, that they don't

          6  have the ability to move money around that they used

          7  to have, where there was basically an overhead

          8  factor that was built into contracts so that they

          9  could use that to cover the cost, the start-up cost,

         10  if you will, in these types of circumstances, and

         11  that what they are being asked to do is to roll the

         12  dice that they are going to be able to make the 100

         13  percent enrollment number and that if they fail they

         14  will have put a very substantial, absorbed a very

         15  substantial risk.

         16                 How I guess was the 40 percent, let

         17  me rephrase that, what is the basis for feeling that

         18  the agencies will be able to meet their enrollment

         19  targets?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         21  Well, first of all, historically that has not been a

         22  problem, that we do have to go on, and we already

         23  know that there are 83,000 applicants for this

         24  summer's program, no one should have a shortfall.

         25                 We always have more youth out there
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          2  than we can provide for.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: In terms of the

          4  jobs placements themselves, are these also the

          5  provider's responsibility?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

          7  Yes, they set up the worksites.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay. And those

          9  worksites by federal law or regulation cannot

         10  include for-profit businesses; is that correct?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         12  JTPA federal regulations prohibit that. They don't

         13  see it as a subsidization for the for-profit sector.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: So traditionally

         15  these placements have been made in not-for-profit

         16  organizations themselves or in government agencies;

         17  is that correct?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         19  Right. The SYEP dollars goes to that, that is right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And roughly what

         21  percentage has been in government agencies, the

         22  placements?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         24  Approximately about 25 percent.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Is there any
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          2  competition for those positions, competition not in

          3  the technical sense, between the SYEP young people

          4  and the WEP workers that the City is also trying to

          5  -- in other words, is there any overlap between the

          6  jobs that WEP workers are being placed into as part

          7  of their workfare requirements and spots that might

          8  otherwise go to these people, to the young people?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: Not

         10  to my knowledge. There hasn't been that conflict

         11  that has arisen, not as far as I know.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay.

         13                 When would you think a provider would

         14  have to start their effort in order to meet their

         15  enrollment deadlines?

         16                 In other words, the contracts may be

         17  effective as of July 6th, but that is when the jobs

         18  are supposed to start also, right?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         20  Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER:  So, if a

         22  provider is going to have kids ready to go into

         23  spots as soon as possible, when would they start

         24  that process?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:
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          2  Most of them start in April, if I am not mistaken.

          3  Recruitment starts in March, Deidre is tell me. The

          4  contract really is effective in April.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: The recruitment

          6  starts in March, which means that the planning

          7  effort starts the beginning of March, perhaps even

          8  in February. So, you have got March, April, May,

          9  June, four months of work that the contractors are

         10  expected to put in before they receive any

         11  compensation?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         13  Well, the previous year's contract ends on 3/31, so

         14  they are still finishing out one contract in March.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: But that is for

         16  work that they previously did?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         18  Right. But they are still on contract technically

         19  through 3/31.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Has there been

         21  any analysis done of what the impact of the Board of

         22  Education summer school programs might do to the

         23  pool of qualified young people for these programs?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: We

         25  don't know yet, so far with the applicants there is
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          2  absolutely no impact. This remains to be seen, which

          3  is why it is important for a provider to develop a

          4  waiting list.

          5                 During the first three weeks of the

          6  program in July the provider is allowed to backfill

          7  their slots, should the youth drop out. We drew the

          8  line of three weeks into the program because beyond

          9  that it has considerable diminishing returns for

         10  youth to go in.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: My last question

         12  is, actually there were two RFPs this year; is that

         13  correct?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         15  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Why was that the

         17  case?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         19  Okay, we had an initial infusion of federal dollars

         20  and at a later date those dollars were increased.

         21  So, we took that into account and negotiated

         22  acquisitions solicitation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Would it be

         24  possible for you to provide us a breakdown of which

         25  of the 47 registered contracts, the ten that are out
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          2  of MOC or going to the Comptroller's Office

          3  tomorrow, and the 11 that are still being reviewed,

          4  how many of those were from the first RFP and how

          5  many the second?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

          7  Okay, can we forward that information to you?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Yes.

          9                 Council Member Robinson.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you,

         11  Chairman Fisher.

         12                 Good afternoon. Commissioner Diglio?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         14  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Could you

         16  provide the chair a list of the contracting agencies

         17  for this, what is it 1999/2000 session?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         19  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 You indicated, in terms of that there

         23  is an oversubscription in terms of there are 83,000

         24  applicants for this year's program, and you

         25  indicated that of course, if there was any shortfall
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          2  then there would be a pool.

          3                 Now, in terms of that pool, all of

          4  the agencies are adequately placed throughout the

          5  borough that the young people have access to them?

          6  Not only within their boroughs but within their

          7  local communities so it would not be a burden for

          8  the young people to have to travel a distance to get

          9  to another agency?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         11  Deidre, why don't you take that one, how we set up,

         12  where they can be recruited, you know, the

         13  convenience.

         14                 MS. PILGRIM: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Yes,

         16  identify yourself, please.

         17                 MS. PILGRIM: Hi. Yes, I am Deidre

         18  Pilgrim, the Executive Director of SYEP.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: I am sorry,

         20  what is your title?

         21                 MS. PILGRIM: Executive Director of

         22  SYEP:

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you.

         24                 MS. PILGRIM: Yes, we have agencies

         25  sufficiently located throughout all five boroughs,
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          2  so therefore there are always sufficient service

          3  level available to make it convenient for the young

          4  person, so they have a choice as to where they can

          5  apply, so it is not to be a hardship on them, as far

          6  as travel is concerned.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay.

          8                 And you indicated to us now, you

          9  have, as Council Member Fisher was going through a

         10  line of questioning in terms of those contracts that

         11  are already registered and then there are some, ten

         12  out of MOC and 11 that are being investigated by the

         13  Department of Investigation, Labor Services?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         15  Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: I see.

         17                 Now, what happens -- now, say for

         18  example those 11 contracts, if for some reason that

         19  the Department for investigation finds some fault

         20  with the contracts, and say for example those

         21  contracts in my area, does that mean that my young

         22  people do not have services? What does that mean for

         23  my young people?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         25  That there would be two options. One, we have a
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          2  group of Citywide contractors who we could go back

          3  to and ask to take additional capacity for the

          4  specific area that was being impacted; and/or go to

          5  a provider within the area of the impact, another

          6  provider, who has been in a similar area, and ask

          7  them to take an increased capacity of that area's

          8  youth.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay. Thank

         10  you, Mr. Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         12  Clarke.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman. There was a time when the Department also

         15  looked at private sector jobs for those who were

         16  above the qualification of the SYEP, is that still

         17  in existence?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         19  There are two situations that that can be addressed,

         20  the Yes Commission, and we do some screening for

         21  them and send youth to them to place in private

         22  sector job situations, and I believe our JOY money

         23  -- does our JOY money go for private sector? No.

         24  Okay, it is the Yes Commission that is the main

         25  conduit into the private sector.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. And do

          3  you know how many jobs they provide throughout the

          4  summer, both what you send? Is there some

          5  communication?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: At

          7  the end we get a report from them, at the end of the

          8  project. Right now I couldn't say.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, fine.

         10                 You explained that you had a

         11  substantial increase in this year's budget, do you

         12  know how many additional slots that should buy? Or

         13  is that still included in the 40,500.

         14                 And followed by that is, you had

         15  83,000 applications, if in fact 45,500 youth is what

         16  it would buy, what happened to other qualified young

         17  people beyond the 40,500; how do you tell those

         18  other young people that you may be qualified but we

         19  don't have a job.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         21  Okay, Deidre, do you know how the sponsors handle

         22  that one?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: That is a

         24  dilemma?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:
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          2  Yes, it is a dilemma.

          3                 MS. PILGRIM: Well, as you know every

          4  year there is an overabundance of young people that

          5  do apply, but also in the past we have historically

          6  exceeded our planned number, so the 40,500 is a

          7  planned number, but we plan to exceed that number.

          8  And we do have replacements, so there are many more

          9  youngsters that might be serviced. But how do we

         10  tell the young person? Well, the contractors try to

         11  refer them to other services, like we do have the

         12  yes with those that are above, we do refer to the

         13  Yes, and contractors, part of their outreach and

         14  recruitment is to help them find jobs if there are

         15  not slots available within their agency. That is how

         16  it is handled.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: So the

         18  increased dollars that you have this year won't buy

         19  you any more slots over your targeted number of

         20  40,500?

         21                 MS. PILGRIM: Well, we plan to -- like

         22  I said, that number is our planned number, but we

         23  know that it will buy more and we definitely plan to

         24  go at least to the level that we had last year which

         25  was approximately 44,000. So, we plan to possibly
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          2  hit that, but our planned solid number is the 40,500

          3  but we do anticipate exceeding that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, my final

          5  question is about this negotiated acquisition

          6  contracts.

          7                 A number of them are bidded out, how

          8  do you decide when you are going to be doing

          9  negotiated acquisitions, who you do that negotiated

         10  acquisition with, or is that a way of getting around

         11  a real system that was put in place for the way in

         12  which contracts are to be awarded?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: My

         14  understanding is negotiated acquisition is supposed

         15  to be a more accelerated way versus the RFP route.

         16  It is supposed to be a quicker, more efficient, and

         17  in our experience it has been a quicker mechanism.

         18                 Applicant organizations forward their

         19  proposals, the proposals are rated in a rating

         20  system very similar to the RFP rating system, and so

         21  based on the ratings, applicant organizations are

         22  picked and called in and contract is negotiated.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: All right. If

         24  Una Clarke Youth Association would rather have a

         25  negotiated acquisition contract, how do I know that
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          2  those contracts are about to be awarded so that I

          3  would get in the pool to come in and to negotiate

          4  and acquire contracts with you.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

          6  Like an RFP it is listed in the City Record. It is

          7  public information when the solicitations when these

          8  solicitations are coming out. Whether it is in an

          9  RFP format, or a negotiated acquisition format. It

         10  is always a public announcement.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         15  Lopez.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you tell me

         17  from the top of your head the name of one of the 51

         18  contractors that is located here in New York City,

         19  Manhattan? From the top of your head? Anyone?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         21  Henry Street.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In Harlem for

         23  example, do you have some?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Is your mic on?

         25                 MS. PILGRIM: We have Henry Street, we
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          2  have East Harlem, the 51 Alianza in Manhattan, the

          3  Valley, let's see I am thinking.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That is pretty

          5  good, you graduated from that. It is clear that you

          6  have a very good memory.

          7                 I asked you that question because I

          8  want to know who these groups are in general, and to

          9  know do they submit to you a reaching out plan when

         10  they get these contracts of how they are going to

         11  reach out to the different youth in the community to

         12  acquire these jobs?

         13                 MS. PILGRIM: Yes, that is part of the

         14  RFP, they had to submit a plan for recruitment, for

         15  job development, for placement, enrollment, all of

         16  that. They had to submit it for the negotiated

         17  acquisition as well as RFP, they have to submit that

         18  plan, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you have a

         20  specific criteria for that reaching out process? Do

         21  you give them guidelines on how you expect this to

         22  be done?

         23                 MS. PILGRIM: We give suggestions and

         24  we provide technical assistance and we do have

         25  training sessions that we have with the contractors
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          2  to give them guidance as to how they can do it. But

          3  there is no specific, as far as recruitment, going

          4  to your high schools and going within your

          5  neighborhoods, having newsletters, meetings, going

          6  to community board meetings, et cetera, those are

          7  the kind of guidelines that we give to the agency as

          8  far as recruitment is concerned.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you have a

         10  list of different contractors who have this

         11  contract, divided by City Council district?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: We

         13  can get that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You do have it?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         16  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can I have the

         18  one for Manhattan?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         20  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Why don't I save

         22  a round of questions, and we would just ask, if you

         23  would provide me with a list of five boroughs we

         24  will make it available to everybody.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just want
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          2  Manhattan for my partner, and know that I am not

          3  interested in the other boroughs, for my brothers

          4  and my sisters, is that I would like to know where

          5  they are located in Manhattan, in order to provide

          6  that information to people who come to my office,

          7  because sometimes they request information in

          8  regards to that and I don't know where to send it.

          9  It is Henry Street, but I get calls from Harlem and

         10  places like that. Then if I can get that, I will

         11  appreciate that information.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Just by way of

         14  clarification on the YES Commission. If young people

         15  who are qualified but you don't have a slot for

         16  them, do you forward those names for the YES

         17  Commission?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         19  Really how it works is that the YES Commission gets

         20  very specific job orders from the private sector and

         21  so our SYEP staff attempts to screen and match the

         22  most appropriate youth for those job orders.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Does that include

         24  the young people who don't meet the SYEP guidelines?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:
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          2  Yes, it does.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay, thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Can we get the

          5  address of the YES Commission? Do we know where the

          6  YES Commission is? Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

          8  Lopez.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just want to

         10  doublecheck this with you. I was informed that the

         11  young people who are in this program cannot work in

         12  an office as a legislative assistant -- I cannot

         13  pronounce this -- like in our office; this is true?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: My

         15  understanding is they can't deal with the

         16  campaign-related work.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Can they work in

         18  our governmental offices?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That goes

         20  without question, I am just asking about work in

         21  their offices.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO:

         23  No, that shouldn't be a problem.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I was told that

         25  that is not possible to have interns in our office
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          2  from this program.

          3                 Okay, thank you for clarifying that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay, thank you

          5  very much.

          6                 We are going to hear from the SYEP

          7  Contractors Coalition next, John McFarland --

          8  McParland rather, and then we have two other

          9  witnesses. I will ask them, I am going to ask the

         10  other witnesses to come up to the table and we will

         11  hear from them. Ariana Funaro, from United

         12  Neighborhood Houses, and I may pronounce this

         13  incorrectly, Adjua Gzifa, from LaGuardia Community

         14  College. Oh, and could somebody from the Department

         15  of Employment stick around in case there are things

         16  that can come up?

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 Go ahead, John. Push the button,

         19  please.

         20                 MR. McPARLAND: Good afternoon. I am

         21  John McParland, Chair for the SYEP Contractors'

         22  Coalition. The SYEP Contractors' Coalition

         23  represents the many community organizations

         24  participating in SYEP. Since 1994, we have met on a

         25  monthly basis to deal with immediate issues
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          2  concerning summer work activities. Our mission has

          3  been to assure that quality services are provided to

          4  our youth.

          5                 Over the years we have maintained a

          6  cordial and productive relationship with the

          7  Department of Employment staff, particularly SYEP

          8  Director Deidre Pilgrim. In unison we understand the

          9  vast importance SYEP plays in the social and

         10  vocational development of our youth. Private

         11  industry has stated many times and I am sure a lot

         12  of you have seen the last year the report in Crain's

         13  about private industry and their need for capable

         14  youth. Private industry has stated many times that

         15  they need individuals with skills.

         16                 SYEP offers under-privileged groups

         17  the opportunity to develop these skills. As an

         18  example, disabled youth participating in summer

         19  youth overcome stigmas, develop self-esteem and

         20  highlight their abilities, rather than their

         21  disabilities.

         22                 As this is the last year for SYEP as

         23  we have known it, the program sponsors are very

         24  concerned that the program's quality services are

         25  maintained. This year's accomplishments should
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          2  continue the fine tradition of over 30 years and

          3  serve as a model for future summer youth activities

          4  that would be initiated by the forthcoming work

          5  force investment board.

          6                 Project sponsors cannot achieve this

          7  goal without the necessary administrative support.

          8  With the support of the Commissioner's office, it is

          9  important and it is hoped that swift payment of the

         10  benchmark accomplishment are generated so that all

         11  summer youth are properly serviced.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: The agency has

         13  testified that we are in good shape, that contracts

         14  representing about 80 percent of the slots are

         15  already registered that all but perhaps a handful of

         16  spots will be done in time for July 6th, that it is

         17  not an issue for the agencies to front the cost of

         18  ramping up for the July 6th initiative because you

         19  have cash flow from previous years contracts and

         20  that you are also going to, by doing it the right

         21  way you are going to get a larger chunk of money up

         22  front, the 40 percent will come faster than it has

         23  in the past, and that since there is such a large

         24  pool of applicants for the programs, it is not a

         25  problem to reach the 100 percent enrollment goal.
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          2  Are they right? Are we all set for this year? No

          3  problems?

          4                 MR. McPARLAND: Well, as we speak I

          5  don't know, you know, of all of the contractors that

          6  are out there --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Can you pull the

          8  mic a little closer?

          9                 MR. McPARLAND: I am sorry. I hope he

         10  is right, let's put it that way. It is a difficult

         11  year as far as we see it. We meet, as I say, on a

         12  monthly basis with a lot of the contractors, and we

         13  all know how much preparation is put into this

         14  program. We say we might start in March, but most of

         15  us even start earlier, trying to contact all of the

         16  worksites, making sure there are appropriate work

         17  sites available for our youth. So, there is a lot of

         18  in-kind work that is done.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Well, based on

         20  the meetings that you have been having over the last

         21  couple of months, I mean this is the end of June, we

         22  are in the middle of June, the program is going to

         23  start in about three weeks, what are the members

         24  saying?

         25                 I mean, one of the reasons you have
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          2  an association is so that no individual organization

          3  gets into trouble for saying the wrong thing, so are

          4  they generally comfortable with where things are at

          5  this point? Or are they nervous about being able to

          6  meet the 100 percent enrollment mark before they can

          7  get any money?

          8                 MR. McPARLAND: They are nervous, they

          9  are definitely nervous. A lot depends on getting

         10  reports back, showing all the eligible youth, so

         11  they are nervous.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Who do those

         13  reports come from?

         14                 MR. McPARLAND: They are from the

         15  Department of Employment. The Department of

         16  Employment issues the eligibility reports.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And when are

         18  those normally received by the agencies?

         19                 MR. McPARLAND: Well, they are done on

         20  an ongoing basis. As they do enrollments, the

         21  Department of Employment tried to issue the

         22  eligibility reports as quickly as possible.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         24  Robinson and then Council Member Perkins.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you
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          2  very much. Of course, thank you for your testimony.

          3                 Many, many years ago in another life

          4  I was one of the persons that helped to develop

          5  Summer Youth Employment worksites for young people,

          6  and I know that as you say, it starts early on.

          7  Exactly when does it start for you, the preparation,

          8  development of the sites and so on? When do you

          9  begin to do that actually?

         10                 MR. McPARLAND: Usually in February

         11  you start.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: In February.

         13                 Have you put a dollar amount to the

         14  amount of time that it takes the in-kind

         15  contribution that is expected from the Department of

         16  Employment, have you put a dollar amount to the time

         17  that it takes you to start up and begin the program

         18  operation for the Summer Youth Employment Program?

         19                 MR. McPARLAND: No--

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON:  You haven't

         21  put a dollar on it, okay. You have just done it.

         22                 How many people used to do that on

         23  your staff?

         24                 MR. McPARLAND: Well, again it is

         25  depending on the agency and how many youth they are
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          2  servicing. I think you can only service the minimum,

          3  I think now is 300 youth, then there are others that

          4  service many, many more. So, it all depends on how

          5  many youth you have to service.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Are you

          7  aware of those applications that are pending? Say,

          8  for example, it was indicated that there were ten I

          9  think out at MOC and there are 11 that are currently

         10  being considered, are you aware of what is happening

         11  with those contracts at all?

         12                 MR. McPARLAND: Just what I learned

         13  today.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Just what

         15  you learned today, okay. All right.

         16                 The reason why I asked is that I

         17  wanted to be aware of how many that, you know, might

         18  be out of the loop, in terms of when you begin

         19  start-up and that is approximately three weeks; is

         20  that correct?

         21                 MR. McPARLAND: Yes, it is.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay, thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         25  Perkins.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman.

          4                 I am going to follow up a little bit

          5  on what my colleague, Councilwoman Annette Robinson

          6  started.

          7                 Related to some of the problems

          8  contractors apparently have been having that maybe

          9  you can share with us, because I know prior to,

         10  there was a second round of contracts, applications,

         11  that there were quite a few groups that for some

         12  reasons did not make the first round. It appeared as

         13  if there were sort of traps in the contract

         14  application that they got snagged by and therefore

         15  were eliminated, and then because additional money

         16  became available on second round, and I guess on the

         17  second round they were able to avoid those

         18  contractual kind of traps.

         19                 Are you familiar with this problem?

         20                 MR. McPARLAND: I have heard of that.

         21  I don't know of anything to really --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Have you had

         23  contractors sharing with you problems about the

         24  contract application process?

         25                 MR. McPARLAND: Yes, I have.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What have

          3  they shared with you?

          4                 MR. McPARLAND: Well, basically some

          5  have said that with the limited amount of time in

          6  terms of handing in the contract and just basically

          7  what the contract contains, the difficulty in

          8  meeting the performance-based --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The reason I

         10  am asking you this is there is an interest on our

         11  part in the City Council, not only with regard to

         12  this Committee that is particularly interested about

         13  the youth contractors, but also with regard to the

         14  Contracts Committee to try to clean up the

         15  contracting process so that those groups that are

         16  truly qualified and truly have something to offer

         17  are not denied that opportunity and we, of course,

         18  are not denied their service because of

         19  insignificant pieces of information that may be

         20  required that are not quite relevant to the

         21  performance.

         22                 So, I would hope that you might have

         23  something to share, if not now at some other time,

         24  from your colleagues as to what we should take out

         25  of the process or what we should include in the
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          2  process that will enable it to go more smoothly and

          3  more fairly with regard to the members of your

          4  coalition.

          5                 MR. McPARLAND: And that could be

          6  something that could be brought up as an agenda item

          7  at one of our meetings.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now there is

          9  some pressure you expressed about filling up the

         10  necessary amount of slack? Would you elaborate a

         11  little bit more on that, please?

         12                 MR. McPARLAND: Yes.

         13                 MS. GZIFA: My name is Adjua Gzifa,

         14  and I am also a member of the SYEP Coalition. In

         15  answer to your question, there was one agency that I

         16  know of that had to drop out of the process just

         17  because of that reason. They were not able to

         18  solicit 300, at least 300 FIFs.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That stands

         20  for?

         21                 MS. GZIFA: Financial Information

         22  Forms. That is the first process, the students have

         23  to fill it out and turn it in, that is how we get

         24  our students.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And is that a
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          2  problem unique to that group or few groups, or is

          3  that something that is a more pervasive?

          4                 MS. GZIFA:  Well, it was probably

          5  just unique to a few groups.

          6                 This happened to have been a new

          7  contractor and they didn't know all of the ins and

          8  outs of how to negotiate the system and how to get

          9  it done.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         11                 It is interesting that you should say

         12  that, because the problem that I was talking about

         13  earlier, at least as it came to my attention and

         14  some of my colleagues' attention, were groups that

         15  had extensive experience as Summer Youth Employment

         16  contractors.

         17                 So, in this case it happens to be by

         18  virtue of not knowing the process. Are some of your

         19  more long-term contractors having this problem of

         20  meeting their quota, if you will?

         21                 MS. GZIFA: I don't think many of the

         22  long-term contractors are having that particular

         23  problem.  Since we have been out there for awhile

         24  the students know us, they come right back each and

         25  every year, so we are not having that problem, it is
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          2  probably the newer contractors. But there were some

          3  contractors who had been in the portfolio who we are

          4  experiencing not just that particular problem, but

          5  the issues of the RFPs, they decided that they could

          6  not do the program this year.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The older

          8  contractors.

          9                 MS. GZIFA: Yes, some.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What were the

         11  issues with the RFP?

         12                 MS. GZIFA: Some of the issues of the

         13  RFP was the language, the way the RFP was written,

         14  the requirements, performance-based part of the

         15  contract, it is going to be very difficult to meet

         16  all the milestones because it is not in our control.

         17                 You see, if we are in control it is

         18  one thing. We are not in control. We are saying if

         19  we don't get 100 percent enrollment, that we don't

         20  get the total 40 percent upfront, so we have to meet

         21  100 percent. And in order to meet 100 percent

         22  eligible people, we have to enroll twice as many,

         23  and sometimes that is not possible.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And how many

         25  folks are having this problem?
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          2                 MS. GZIFA: About three or four that I

          3  know of.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And these are

          5  seasoned sort of contractors that have been around

          6  for awhile?

          7                 MS. GZIFA: No, the ones I am talking

          8  about are pretty new.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And are there

         10  any other problems that you want to share with us

         11  that perhaps some of the seasoned contractors are

         12  having?

         13                 MS. GZIFA: Besides the fact that it

         14  is a performance-based contract? We are all kind of

         15  pulling our hair right now. We don't know what is

         16  going to happen, we don't know how many of our

         17  students are going to be eligible. I mean, we are

         18  doing the work, and it is a very intensive-type

         19  work, we would have no idea how it is really going

         20  to go.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Just one

         22  question. And is it the idea of a performance-based

         23  contract that you are having a problem with or with

         24  conditions surrounding such a performance-based?

         25                 MS. GZIFA: The conditions surrounding
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          2  it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I want to

          4  hear you speak here --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We are going to

          6  have her testimony in just a minute. She just jumped

          7  in to answer the question.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Oh, okay,

          9  well I will wait then.

         10                 MS. GZIFA: Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Why don't you

         12  just go right into your testimony then.

         13                 MS. GZIFA: Okay. As I stated before,

         14  my name is Adjua Gzifa and I am with LaGuardia

         15  Community College, and I am also an SYEP contractor.

         16  I have been actively involved in the Summer Youth

         17  Employment Program at LaGuardia for the past seven

         18  years. It is without a doubt that our youth are

         19  better served when actively engaged in constructive

         20  real work, educational experiences.

         21                 For the past nine years we have

         22  successfully administered SYEP programs serving over

         23  3,000 youth.

         24                 This year we will serve approximately

         25  600 participants. By the end of the program they
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          2  will have demonstrated an increase in working

          3  maturity and a clear understanding of why it is

          4  important for them to remain in school and complete

          5  their education.

          6                 Furthermore, as a result of

          7  participating in SYEP, participants will have

          8  multi-faceted meaningful work experiences. Students

          9  also participate in computer Olympics, which is a

         10  computer-assisted instruction and work-based

         11  learning activities. Participants attend

         12  employability skills workshops which include

         13  structured orientation, which explains participants'

         14  job descriptions and expectations, interviewing

         15  techniques, scan skills and competencies and how to

         16  dress for the world of work.

         17                 They learn about relationships

         18  between educational achievement and career planning,

         19  resume preparation and basic communication skills

         20  which are effective on the job.

         21                 This year the Summer Youth Employment

         22  Program presents a real challenge for all

         23  contractors.

         24                 This year's contract is a

         25  performance-based contract with unrealistic goals.
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          2  Contractors will be paid in installments based on

          3  milestones achieved by the youth participants, not

          4  by the program operators. These are factors over

          5  which we have no control. To require the

          6  participants to work 100 percent of the time is

          7  unrealistic.

          8                 We service a large population of

          9  students who come to us with varying degrees of

         10  social, economic, psychological and behavioral

         11  deficits, problems and conditions which prevent them

         12  from complying with the attendance requirements.

         13  Many of our students come from foster care and/or

         14  group homes, and are teen parents or are on

         15  probation. These factors may prevent them from

         16  performing to their fullest potential because of

         17  commitments they must keep which are beyond their

         18  control.

         19                 In the past, we have been able to

         20  service students from any borough and place them on

         21  jobs in their borough, close to their homes. We are

         22  no longer allowed to place them in other boroughs,

         23  and we cannot place them in private industry. This

         24  has severely handicapped many of the project

         25  sponsors. There are not enough public sector jobs to
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          2  accommodate all of the participants enrolled in the

          3  various programs around the City.

          4                 In addition, we are all trying to

          5  place participants in the same agency. These

          6  agencies have a limited amount of jobs available and

          7  cannot accommodate the number of participants

          8  seeking employment. Consequently, this has promoted

          9  competition between the various contractors

         10  providing services to the participants.

         11                 Furthermore, this practice has caused

         12  contractors hundreds of sites that were willing and

         13  able in the past to work with our population.

         14                 Placing participants in the private

         15  sector has proven to be very rewarding in the past.

         16  Participants placed in these jobs have gained real

         17  work experiences that lead to either part-time or

         18  full-time employment at the end of the summer.

         19                 Not allowing the private sector to

         20  participate in the program, this year is a

         21  disservice to our youth. These experiences and the

         22  employment opportunities that can be measured by the

         23  continued employment of the youth and their

         24  contribution to the tax structure and the economy of

         25  this City.
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          2                 The Summer Youth Employment Program

          3  is a vehicle for our youth to learn how the world of

          4  work impacts their lives on a daily basis. It also

          5  gives them a sense of pride and respect, knowing

          6  that they are able to provide for themselves,

          7  becoming more independent and self-sufficient. This

          8  program is vital to our communities and the youth we

          9  serve. By keeping them actively engaged in work and

         10  education, we keep them off the streets and out of

         11  trouble. We provide a venue for them to expend their

         12  energy in a positive manner. We also provide

         13  academic enrichment, career education, computer

         14  literacy and a variety of workshops that address

         15  conflict resolution, cultural diversity, teen

         16  parenting and drug awareness.

         17                 The effectiveness of this program is

         18  undeniable. When an agency is able to obtain 50 or

         19  more full-time permanent positions for participants

         20  in the private sector alone, then they have

         21  accomplished the goals of the program. Denying us

         22  the opportunity to continue to effectively serve the

         23  youth population by providing them with jobs in the

         24  private sector, will keep them at a disadvantage.

         25                 The Summer Youth Program works when
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          2  it is administered properly. Participants leave the

          3  program with a sense of accomplishment, pride and

          4  responsibility. Having taken advantage of all of the

          5  program components, they are well equipped to return

          6  to school and/or work with confidence and readiness.

          7                 Not continuing to provide this

          8  service would be unjust. The system has failed our

          9  youth in so many ways. We should continue to play

         10  our role in this process and not turn our backs on

         11  our youth. Providing structured employment and

         12  education are essential for the continued success

         13  and growth of the youth population and the community

         14  on a whole. SYEP should survive.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you. Before

         16  questions, I had neglected earlier to mention that

         17  Council Member Quinn had been participating in the

         18  hearing.

         19                 Council Member Lopez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: If I understand

         21  correctly what you just said, prior you can place

         22  your clients in a private sector job. Now you

         23  cannot.

         24                 MS. GZIFA: That is correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you give an
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          2  explanation why not?

          3                 MS. GZIFA: Well, no, we are told that

          4  the federal government mandate was that we were not

          5  able to do that this year.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you seen

          7  the regulation that dictates that from the federal

          8  government?

          9                 MS. GZIFA: No.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do we have

         11  knowledge of this?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I will ask our

         13  Counsel if he would research this and provide us

         14  with a copy of the regulation, and if you could

         15  also, whether it is by statute or regulation and if

         16  you can get some sense of what the genesis of it

         17  was.

         18                 We know that the agency has

         19  repeatedly represented to us that this was something

         20  that they were required to follow, and I will ask

         21  our Counsel to provide us with a copy of the text.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I mean, this is

         23  a very serious proposition here, because how will

         24  you develop skills that only you can acquire to the

         25  private sector? And what is the purpose of this
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          2  program? The philosophy of this program, as I

          3  understand it, is to prepare these young people to

          4  have access to that job market. And if you are

          5  saying that they cannot go there, I don't understand

          6  what is then the purpose of it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I don't either,

          8  but I know that Commissioner Pagan has himself

          9  testified several times that the Giuliani

         10  Administration would prefer to train people for the

         11  private sector if they had the choice, so I don't

         12  think it is something that they initiated.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then it would

         14  be important for us to know this, to see how we can

         15  fight it back.

         16                 Then besides that, you were saying

         17  that you have contractors who no longer wish to

         18  participate in this process because of the

         19  requirements that are put in place.

         20                 MS. GZIFA: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But these are

         22  new requirements according to you?

         23                 MS. GZIFA: Well, the fact that we

         24  can't use private industry is new. Because I have

         25  done this program for seven years and we have placed
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          2  our students in private industry in the past. This

          3  is the first year that we have been told that we

          4  cannot.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then that is

          6  the biggest problem in the new regulation?

          7                 MS. GZIFA: Well, of course, because

          8  the fact is how many City jobs are there, how many

          9  not-for-profit organizations exist in any one

         10  community? We are limited to putting our students

         11  only in the borough in which we service. For

         12  instance, I service Queens, therefore, I can only

         13  place my students in Queens.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then that is a

         15  new regulation --

         16                 MS. GZIFA: That is also new.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, those two

         18  new regulations are causing some of the

         19  organizations that you know not to, no longer to be

         20  willing to participate.

         21                 MS. GZIFA: Correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What other

         23  reasons, besides those two?

         24                 MS. GZIFA: The fact that they are

         25  going to have to wait so much longer for their
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          2  money.

          3                 I mean, they are saying that we are

          4  going to get the 40 percent quicker and faster, I

          5  don't personally see that. I just know that if we

          6  don't meet 100 percent eligibility, we are not going

          7  to get the total 40 percent.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What do you

          9  need to do to reach the 100 percent eligibility?

         10                 MS. GZIFA: You need to recruit at

         11  least two, two and a half times as many students.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What is that

         13  number?

         14                 MS. GZIFA: For instance, I am going

         15  to do 500 students this year, I needed to recruit at

         16  least 1,000.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In order to get

         18  500.

         19                 MS. GZIFA: In order to get 500

         20  eligible.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And what are

         22  the eligibility criteria?

         23                 MS. GZIFA: They have to meet the

         24  income requirements. They have to be citizens, they

         25  have to live in the borough. Those are the main
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          2  things.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Those are the

          4  main things.

          5                 MS. GZIFA: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then what you

          7  are telling me is that a young person from Queens

          8  comes to your program in Manhattan, they cannot be

          9  in your program in Manhattan?

         10                 MS. GZIFA: They can live in

         11  Manhattan, they can come to Queens, but they would

         12  have to work in Queens.

         13                 I couldn't place them in Manhattan

         14  because I don't have any sites in Manhattan. I am

         15  not allowed to.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then let me

         17  change the question.

         18                 Where do you operate your program

         19  from?

         20                 MS. GZIFA: Queens.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay. If a

         22  young person from Manhattan goes to Queens, to your

         23  program, and said, okay, I want to register here,

         24  you cannot accept that person there?

         25                 MS. GZIFA: No, I can't accept that
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          2  person. I can register them. But I must tell them

          3  that the job they are going to get is in Queens.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Only.

          5                 MS. GZIFA: Only.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, thank

          7  you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

          9  Perkins and then Council Member Clarke.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you,

         11  again. Thank you for your testimony. It does help

         12  explain some of the concerns that you were trying to

         13  explain to me earlier.

         14                 You have a sentence that I am not

         15  clear about on page two of your testimony, it is the

         16  last sentence in the top paragraph, and it says to

         17  require participants to work 100 percent of the time

         18  is unrealistic. This seems to be one of the factors

         19  that you are very concerned about, now what are you

         20  getting at here?

         21                 MS. GZIFA: In order for us to --

         22  those are one of the milestones. The participants

         23  work seven weeks, weeks two through six, if the

         24  participant works 100 percent of the time, that

         25  means they are never absent and they are never late,
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          2  okay? Then we stand a chance of getting the entire

          3  20 percent of our funds that is going to be due at

          4  the end of the third week and the sixth week.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Would you

          6  repeat that.

          7                 MS. GZIFA: At the end of the third

          8  week and the end of the sixth week we will get the

          9  other 20 -- in other words, this contract is broken

         10  down percentage-wise, 40 percent of the funds will

         11  be paid to us, upon completion of our eligibility.

         12  So, we have 100 percent of our people who are

         13  eligible, we will get that 40 percent, okay?

         14                 The second step is when the students

         15  go to work, then their attendance becomes a problem.

         16  If we have students who are in summer school, or

         17  students who, like four of the other reasons I

         18  mentioned in my testimony, have an obligation that

         19  they have to meet, they cannot work 100 percent of

         20  the time, so they will miss a day or two days.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, in other

         22  words, if these students have 100 percent of

         23  attendance, that affects the percentage that you get

         24  in the second step?

         25                 MS. GZIFA: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What is the

          3  ideal amount that you would get in the second step,

          4  assuming they made 100 percent of attendance.

          5                 MS. GZIFA: Twenty percent.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: They would

          7  get 20 percent in the second stage, if they are 100

          8  percent in attendance, correct?

          9                 MS. GZIFA: Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And less than

         11  100 percent?

         12                 MS. GZIFA: Then it is less. Then it,

         13  you know, is on a prorated basis.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It is less

         15  prorated. So, if you have 500 young people as you

         16  suggest you are going to have, and in that group of

         17  500 there is let's say an absentee rate of about ten

         18  percent, it means ten percent of the 20 percent is

         19  deducted?

         20                 MS. GZIFA: I think that is probably

         21  how it works.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And what is

         23  the third stage, by the way, where we have 60

         24  percent of your money so far, where is the --

         25                 MS. GZIFA: Okay, so weeks two through
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          2  six --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Weeks five, six

          4  and seven.

          5                 MS. GZIFA: Weeks five, six and seven

          6  is another 20 percent.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And what is

          8  that based on?

          9                 MS. GZIFA: The same thing, the

         10  attendance requirements.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: All right, so

         12  now we are up to 80 percent?

         13                 MS. GZIFA: Right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And how do we

         15  get the last 20 percent?

         16                 MS. GZIFA: That is 80 percent.  You

         17  have 40, 20 and 20, that is 80.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Oh, the last

         19  is 20 percent also.

         20                 MS. GZIFA: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And that is

         22  based on the last few weeks.

         23                 MS. GZIFA: The last three weeks of

         24  the program, right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: All right, so
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          2  for the most part, the milestones, there are two

          3  basic milestones that seem to be challenging; number

          4  one, it is enrollment.

          5                 MS. GZIFA: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And number

          7  two, it is attendance.

          8                 MS. GZIFA: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And

         10  enrollment, the milestone there is, do you indicate

         11  in the early part of the process the number that you

         12  are going to enroll?

         13                 MS. GZIFA: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And based on

         15  the number that you choose?

         16                 MS. GZIFA: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: If you choose

         18  instead of 500, let's say you decided to choose 400,

         19  and you actually enrolled 500, is there a bonus?

         20                 MS. GZIFA: No.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But if you

         22  enrolled 300 there would be a deduction.

         23                 MS. GZIFA: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. So, you

         25  choose a number, a magic number, you meet it, you
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          2  get it, you don't meet it, you don't get it.

          3                 MS. GZIFA: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. Now,

          5  the attendance issue, when these young people are

          6  absent or enrolled in another program, is this

          7  something that you would know about, or how is that

          8  monitored?

          9                 MS. GZIFA: Yes, they are our

         10  students, so we definitely know. We have to do the

         11  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Don't you

         13  send them some place else to work?

         14                 MS. GZIFA: Yes, we send them out to

         15  work but we have to monitor them, we have to go out

         16  there and make sure that they are at work, they have

         17  their time sheets --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So let's say

         19  for the moment you send 20 kids to Councilman Bill

         20  Perkins office to do some work, and how do you

         21  monitor whether or not those 20 students are in

         22  attendance?

         23                 MS. GZIFA: Okay, once a week our

         24  monitor comes out to your office to make sure that

         25  the students are in attendance, they have a
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          2  monitoring report that they have to fill out and

          3  return to DOE. In addition to that, DOE comes out

          4  and they also monitor the site.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

          6                 Now, in the past, how were you paid

          7  in the past? You get 40 percent up front or what was

          8  the formula then? What were the steps then, do you

          9  remember?

         10                 MS. GZIFA: I couldn't tell you the

         11  formula, but I know we have got -- the enrollment

         12  criteria wasn't one of them, the attendance wasn't

         13  one of them, no. We did an RFP, we wrote our

         14  proposal, we got our contract, and the money came to

         15  us at some point in time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me ask

         17  you this: Having done this for seven years, what is

         18  the -- you know, from your own successful program,

         19  what would you say is the average absentee rate?

         20                 MS. GZIFA: Well, it varies.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Twenty

         22  percent, 30 percent?

         23                 MS. GZIFA: Maybe 20 percent.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Twenty

         25  percent, that is pretty heavy.
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          2                 MS. GZIFA: It is pretty heavy.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

          6  Clarke.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes, you raise

          8  the issue of citizenship requirement for young

          9  people. If the parent is a citizen, the young is not

         10  a citizen, is the young person eligible? Or is it

         11  the youngster that must be a US citizen --

         12                 MS. GZIFA: The youngster has to be

         13  legal and able to work. Yes, a citizen.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: No, no. Being

         15  legal is one thing, because if you have a green card

         16  and you are legally admitted, you are legal.

         17                 MS. GZIFA: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Now, if you

         19  are not naturalized, then you are not a citizen, and

         20  I am trying to figure out which is the requirement,

         21  that naturalization or is it the admission on the

         22  legal status; which is the requirement? Is

         23  citizenship the requirement because they are two

         24  different things.

         25                 MS. GZIFA: Oh, yes. They can be alien
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          2  registry.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, the

          4  alien registration card allows them to work.

          5                 MS. GZIFA: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Fine, because

          7  if it was the other way around, 50 percent of my

          8  whole district would be gone this summer.

          9                 MS. GZIFA: Yes, they are eligible.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         11  much. I just want to make sure that the green card

         12  is working.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Do you have any

         14  recommendations, I think the concern that went into

         15  the RFP and the performance milestones was that you

         16  can contract to make a certain number of placements.

         17  You sign up a bunch of kids and if they never show

         18  up for work after that you still get paid. So, the

         19  pendulum swings the other way and these milestones

         20  are established.

         21                 If we want to make sure that we are

         22  getting our money's worth from the contractors, what

         23  do you think the best way to do that would be?

         24                 MS. GZIFA: Could you repeat your

         25  question?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: If we want to

          3  have some assurance that the kids were actually

          4  going to get recruited in the right numbers, and

          5  they are actually going to get placed in the jobs

          6  and they are actually going to show up for work,

          7  which is what the provider is being paid, that is

          8  the services that the provider is being paid for, if

          9  we don't use the milestone that the Department of

         10  Employment have written into this RFP, what criteria

         11  should we use for making sure that the providers are

         12  doing what their contracts obligate them to do?

         13                 MS. GZIFA: Well, I believe there are

         14  already procedures in place to assure that, because

         15  in the past, before this year's contract we have

         16  always operated that way, it was mandatory we had to

         17  make sure that our students -- now, that doesn't

         18  mean that I am going to get on the phone and call

         19  them up and say, you know, you are not at work

         20  today, because everybody has a problem that maybe

         21  they have to go to the doctor, you have a teen

         22  parent, she has to take her child to a doctor, she

         23  is not going to be able to come to work that day. Or

         24  you have a youth that is on probation, he might have

         25  to go see his PO that day, it may take all day, he
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          2  won't be at work that day, you know? But 99 percent

          3  of the time, these kids are at work. They want to

          4  work. They are there. We don't have to chase them

          5  down.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Ms. Funaro.

          9                 MS. FUNARO: Good afternoon, Chairman

         10  Fisher and members of the Committee. My name is

         11  Ariana Funaro, and I am a policy analyst for United

         12  Neighborhood Houses. For years UNH and its 38 member

         13  settlement houses, with programs benefitting 500,000

         14  people at 310 sites across the City have

         15  participated in the Summer Youth Employment Program

         16  or SYEP.

         17                 The members of our federation that

         18  are SYEP contractors place some 5,000 teens in jobs,

         19  nearly one out of seven youth in the program.

         20                 Numerous other settlements serve as

         21  employers for those teams and count on SYEP

         22  participants to stop their day camps and work in

         23  their senior centers each summer, making SYEP a

         24  vital part of the settlement community.

         25                 Over the years we have often looked
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          2  to the City Council to join us in advocating with

          3  federal law makers for the adequate appropriations

          4  to support the many young people in our City who

          5  need summer jobs. Now, however, the question is no

          6  longer purely one of appropriations but also

          7  planning. As we look at the shape of this year's

          8  program, we must recognize that it is the last year

          9  of SYEP, the last year SYEP will exist in its

         10  current form.

         11                 The Workforce Investment Act of 1998,

         12  WIA, is scheduled to replace the Job Training and

         13  Partnership Act in July of 2000, it does not contain

         14  a separate summer youth employment program. Instead

         15  IWA authorizes one youth employment funding stream

         16  which will support both year-round and summer

         17  activities.

         18                 The exact nature of the summer

         19  program is left up to state and local planners. In

         20  this planning process, those of us who believe in

         21  the benefits of SYEP must be vocal in our support

         22  for a new program, matching the size and scope of

         23  the current one.

         24                 Settlement houses have many reasons

         25  to support SYEP. First and foremost, we see the
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          2  positive effects these summer jobs have on the youth

          3  of our communities.

          4                 Often the first work experience for

          5  many teams, these summer jobs teach punctuality,

          6  responsibility and interpersonal skills while

          7  beginning to build the teams resumes.

          8                 Youth participating through Seneca

          9  Center in the Bronx have often been hired on a more

         10  permanent basis after their summer jobs.

         11                 Several 1998 SYEP participants

         12  currently work part-time for a catering company and

         13  one has a year-long internship at Merrill Lynch.

         14                 The adults these youth meet and work

         15  with each day become important mentors. In other

         16  words, these jobs are a true workforce investment,

         17  as they prepare young people for employment and

         18  independence.

         19                 The neighborhoods where the SYEP

         20  participants live also benefit immensely from the

         21  program. From an economic development perspective,

         22  the money youth make in these jobs helps to support

         23  their families and their communities. With this

         24  extra money teens can buy their own school supplies

         25  or clothing, easing the pressure on families who are
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          2  struggling to become or remain self-sufficient.

          3                 The youth also spend their money at

          4  neighborhood businesses. The Center for Family Life

          5  estimates that SYEP brings almost $1 million into

          6  the Sunset Park economy each summer.

          7                 The program also provides youth from

          8  the lower east side to Hunt's Point with positive

          9  alternatives to their neighborhood street corners.

         10                 This is a boon for public safety in

         11  their communities. The Norwood section of the Bronx

         12  has seen a steady drop in crime each summer, as the

         13  number of neighborhood youth participating in

         14  Mosholu, Montefiore Community Center, SYEP rises.

         15                 In the summer of 1998, 1,800 youth

         16  were employed and the crime dropped at least 20

         17  percent.

         18                 Hopefully the City's work force

         19  investment plan will maintain and improve on this

         20  program which does so much for the youth of our

         21  City. The new legislation mandates that states and

         22  local areas create strict performance standards to

         23  foster continuous improvement and concrete

         24  measurable outcomes.

         25                 While keeping track of outcomes is
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          2  very important to improving service delivery,

          3  performance measures must be realistic if they are

          4  to be meaningful.

          5                 This summer's contract with the

          6  Department of Employment held providers accountable

          7  for 100 percent of attendance in order to receive

          8  100 percent of their contract dollars.

          9                 This does not make sense, especially

         10  when we consider how the unexpected, from illness to

         11  family difficulties, can cause us to miss work.

         12                 In the City's planning for youth

         13  programs, both summer and year-round, we must set

         14  benchmarks that are stringent enough to force

         15  program improvement while being realistic enough not

         16  to result in unnecessary hardship for providers.

         17                 Finally, the central role of

         18  community-based organizations or CBOs play in the

         19  youth programs must be maintained. Settlement Houses

         20  and other neighborhood organizations are ideal

         21  places for youth employment services, since along

         22  with jobs they provide supportive environments for

         23  at-risk youth, and often have a comprehensive

         24  approach incorporating a youth's whole family.

         25                 The 1999 contracts for SYEP have
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          2  locked CBOs and other SYEP contractors out of the

          3  for-profit sector, only allowing them to place youth

          4  in non-profit or public sector jobs.

          5                 Contractors with relationships to

          6  nursing homes or other local small businesses can no

          7  longer place their youth with those employers.

          8                 Only the Mayor's YES Commission may

          9  place youth in for-profit sector jobs.

         10                 This restrictive policy hurts

         11  providers and boroughs they serve. The requirement

         12  that SYEP contractors only place youth in the same

         13  boroughs they recruit from also impedes the

         14  contractor's ability to provide meaningful work for

         15  the youth involved.

         16                 The Administration consistently seems

         17  to be making it more difficult for CBOs to

         18  participate, perhaps heralding a movement away from

         19  CBO involvement in the program.

         20                 This trend should stop. If the

         21  expertise and commitment of current SYEP contractors

         22  is lost in program changes under WIA, the youth of

         23  New York City stand to lose as well. UNH urges the

         24  City Council to ensure that in the summers to come

         25  the city maintains a youth employment program at
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          2  least as large as the one today, and that

          3  community-based organizations which have a

          4  long-standing commitment to their neighborhood teens

          5  and meeting local needs, remain a central component

          6  of the program.

          7                 I would like to add one other thing.

          8  I spoke to one of our SYEP contractors yesterday and

          9  he has not yet received his funding from 1998 SYEP,

         10  so he hasn't been able to use that as part of his,

         11  before he receives the 40 percent piece.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I would ask the

         13  DOE representatives, when you give us the schedule

         14  of contractors that we had discussed earlier, if you

         15  could asterisk for us how many of them are

         16  participating in the program for the first time,

         17  since there was an expansion in the number of

         18  contractors.

         19                 Secondly, we would also appreciate

         20  some information as to which contracts from the

         21  previous fiscal year still have unpaid balances

         22  associated with them.

         23                 And then also I didn't focus when the

         24  Commissioner was here on the borough requirement, I

         25  don't remember there being any explanation as to
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          2  what the rationale was for that, and I would

          3  appreciate it if you could provide us with some

          4  written explanation of that.

          5                 Council Member Perkins, did you have

          6  a question?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

          8                 Now, how many of your settlement

          9  houses are no longer participating as a result of

         10  the new performance-based milestone type?

         11                 MS. FUNARO: Just one. The

         12  organization which Adjua was speaking about, that

         13  had to drop out and run with a new contractor was

         14  one of our settlements.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Oh, okay.

         16  What was the name of that settlement?

         17                 MS. FUNARO: Sunnyside Community

         18  Center in Queens.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And the

         20  reason they are not participating is what?

         21                 MS. FUNARO: They cannot reach their

         22  enrollment numbers in time. They are having trouble

         23  getting the number of kids.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, do you

         25  know when you are enrolling whether or not the
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          2  students will be attending summer school?

          3                 MS. FUNARO: Not yet, there is often a

          4  lag between them.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You wouldn't

          6  know when you sign them up.

          7                 When you find out, do you fire them?

          8  Or what do you do? Because they are not worth

          9  anything to you from the perspective of your money.

         10  I mean, what do you do?

         11                 MS. GZIFA: We employ them.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You continue

         13  to employ them.

         14                 MS. GZIFA: Yes, we do.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And you

         16  suffer the loss?

         17                 MS. GZIFA: Some of the sites are able

         18  to accommodate us by staying open a little bit later

         19  so students have to go to summer school. There are a

         20  number of them that we can place in sites where they

         21  can still do their full six-hour day. Some not. Some

         22  have to, you know, settle for doing four yours a

         23  day.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: For instance,

         25  in the past, what percentage of your enrollees were
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          2  summer school students, would you say?

          3                 MS. GZIFA: Fifteen to 20 percent.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Fifteen to 20

          5  percent were attending. Now, regular working hours

          6  -- okay, so at what point would you have to make

          7  the decision as to whether or not to keep them this

          8  time? Because in the past you could accommodate it a

          9  little bit easier because you were getting paid

         10  anyway. This time it becomes a problem.

         11                 MS. GZIFA: Well, I guess it is going

         12  to be a, you know, see as we go.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Are the

         14  students made aware of the fact that your

         15  reimbursement is contingent upon their attendance?

         16                 MS. GZIFA: No.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: How do they

         18  become aware of it?

         19                 MS. GZIFA: I usually do an

         20  orientation. You know, since it is the first year,

         21  that is going to be, you know, the venue by which we

         22  tell them it's going to be at orientation. But there

         23  was one thing we didn't mention, too, that students

         24  who do perform and do meet the 100 percent

         25  attendance criteria will get a $50 bonus in the end.
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          2  So that is an incentive for them to all come to

          3  work.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: They are

          5  going to get a $50 bonus for perfect attendance?

          6                 MS. GZIFA: For perfect attendance.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The other

          8  obstacle that seems to stick out here is the

          9  obstacle that relates to meeting your mark, in terms

         10  of enrollments. What are some of the reasons why you

         11  are having a problem meeting that mark?

         12                 Why do you have to do so much to get

         13  to the point where you want to get?

         14                 MS. GZIFA: Well, students either do

         15  not show up for the enrollment because they have

         16  either found other jobs, or some have decided that

         17  they are going on vacation and they are not going to

         18  work. Some decide that they are going to go to

         19  summer school and they are not going to work, so

         20  those things affect our enrollment.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, in the

         22  past when you didn't meet your mark, you don't know

         23  whether you got fully compensated or not?

         24                 MS. GZIFA: Well, we get fully

         25  compensated because we were paid over the course of
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          2  the contract from March until -- from March until

          3  March.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I see.

          5                 All right, thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you very

          7  much for your testimony. We will know at the end of

          8  the summer how this particular contract played out,

          9  but we also know that regardless of whether it is

         10  successful, and we hope that it is for everybody

         11  involved with it, the program as it now exists won't

         12  exist next year. That is the one thing that is a

         13  certainty. So, in the fall, together with the

         14  Committee on General Welfare, we are going to take

         15  up the topic of where we are in terms of the

         16  implementation of the Work Force Investment Act with

         17  respect to the summer youth employment, assuming

         18  that the entities that are created under the new WIA

         19  law even provide for summer youth employment. And I

         20  would just encourage the Administration to use its

         21  best efforts to get the other branches of government

         22  to do what they have to do so that the City can then

         23  implement what it has to do, because I don't think

         24  that any of us want to be in a position of getting

         25  to the end of this year and not know what form this
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          2  program is going to take next year because it would

          3  certainly be impossible to meet the needs of the

          4  young people if that is the case.

          5                 So, we will continue our discussion

          6  of the Summer Youth Employment Program after the

          7  summer with a view towards looking down the road.

          8                 Thank you all for coming. We are

          9  adjourned.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 2:46 p.m.)
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